ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
Anchorage LI O — Auditorium
August 29, 2016
10: 03 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair

Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair (via teleconference)
Senator Charlie Huggins

Senator Lesil MQiire

Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn

Representative Liz Vazquez

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon (via tel econference)
Senat or Kevi n Meyer

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

PERFORMANCE AND PROCEDURES REVI EW STATEW DE PRI MARY ELECTI ON OF
AUGUST 16, 2016.

- HEARD
W TNESS REG STER

BRANDON BREFCZYNSKI, St aff

Senator Bill Stoltze

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded an overview on issues regarding the
2016 Primary El ection.

ALPHEUS BULLARD, Attorney

Legi sl ative Legal Services
Juneau, Al aska

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- August 29, 2016



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed | egal renedies regarding el ectoral
i ssues for the 2016 Primary El ecti on.

JOSI E BAHNKE, Director

D vi sion of Elections

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed issues regarding the 2016 Primary
El ecti on.

LUKE WELLES, representing hinself

Barrow, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Detailed his voting experience in District
40 during the 2016 Primary El ecti on.

PAUL KENDALL, representing hinself

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on voting in the 2016 Primary
El ection in Anchorage.

M CHAEL CHAMBERS, representing hinself

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on voting in the 2016 Primary
El ecti on.

EUGENE HABERMAN, representing hinself

Wasilla, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commrented on the electoral process and the
Di vision of Elections.

DAVI D EASTMAN, representing hinself

Wasi |l a, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Discussed his challenges in attenpting to
observe the vote count after the 2016 Primary El ection.

DEBORAH BROLLI NI, representing herself

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Discussed her son's issue regarding voter
registration for the 2016 Primary El ection.

M KE COONS, representing hinself
Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conmented on the Division of Elections and
provi ded suggestions regarding the 2016 Primary El ecti on.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- August 29, 2016



10: 03: 41 AM

CHAIR BILL STOLTZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Committee neeting to order at 10:03 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators W el echowski, Huggi ns, Coghi | | (via
tel econference), and Chair Stoltze. He announced that non-
commttee legislators in attendance were Representative Lynn,
Senat or Meyer, and Senator MacKi nnon (via tel econference).

ELECTI ON PERFORVMANCE AND PROCEDURES REVI EW
STATEW DE PRI MARY ELECTI ON OF AUGUST 16, 2016

10: 04: 21 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE announced that the conmttee was neeting to review
issues related to the 2016 Primary Election. He noted that the
recent primary election was still in the process of counting
votes. He stated that he appreciated Director Bahnke for making
herself available to listen and respond in order to serve the
public's interest both through the attending press, questions
from the commttee, and to hear concerns as the D vision of
El ections goes through their process prior to finalizing on
Sept enber 2.

He explained that due to the Labor Day holiday, the comittee
was having the hearing because the next possible date woul d have
been after certification. He asserted that the purpose of the
heari ng was about the issues and not about a specific candi date
or to influence the el ection.

He set forth that the conmttee's intent would be to go through
a brief presentation on the issues that had been raised,
i ncluding those brought up in the nmedia. He detailed that the
nmeeting's interactive portion wuld entail responses and
clarifications. He remarked that there may be things that the
Division of Elections may easily explain and those that require
contenplation. He added that he intended to include public
testinmony in order to hear any comments that people have about
any issues encountered with the 2016 election. He stated that
instead of having anecdotal calls that many |egislators have
received, the comrittee intends to give the public an
opportunity to put their experiences on the record for the
Di vision of Elections to hear.

SENATOR HUGE NS pointed out that no one from the adm nistration
was in the conmttee room

10: 08: 55 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- August 29, 2016



BRANDON BREFCZYNSKI, Staff, Senator Stoltze, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, Juneau, Alaska, stated that the hearing' s intent
was to discuss potential concerns with the 2016 Primary El ection
and not to influence any outconme of an election or any other
purpose prohibited by AS 24.60.030. He revealed that the
Legi slature does have the constitutional authority for review
and oversite of elections. He specified that the election data
used in his presentation was based upon unofficial election
results, recent media reports, statements nmade by the
adm nistration, and did not include anecdotal accounts from
menbers of the public. He added that official results were
scheduled for certification on Septenber 2. He reveal ed that
voter turnout for the primary election was |ower than prior
years.

10: 10: 18 AM

He set forth that the commttee would cover areas of potenti al
concern that focused on Shungnak in House District 40, Chefornak
in House District 38, Newtok in House District 38, and Copper
Center in House District 6.

He referenced a slide on District 40, Shungnak. He said the
slide showed historical primary data for 2016, 2014, and 2012.
He detailed that the primary was broken down by types of ballots
cast and specified as foll ows:

For reference right now you will see that there were
100 cards that were cast, but as we see in this slide
here, following the primary, nmedia reports started to
claim that voters were given both the Republican and
Denocratic conbined ballot and that there were only
100 cards cast; but, in the event they were given
bot h, you would have 50 voters voting on both ballots.

CHAIR STOLTZE stated that the question regarding two ballots
woul d be posed to Director Bahnke to directly respond to rather
than a filtered response through the nedi a.

10: 12: 23 AM
MR. BREFCZYNSKI referenced a slide showing two nedia reports
that noted that the admi nistrati on was aware.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked that M. Brefczynski read the quotes from
the Al aska Dispatch News regarding State Division of Elections
Director Josie Bahnke and a statenent by Lieutenant Governor
Byron Mallott.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- August 29, 2016



MR. BREFCZYNSKI referenced an article from the Al aska D spatch
News that quoted Director Bahnke as foll ows:

State Division of Elections Director Josie Bahnke said
there's no need to redo the election because voters
didn't vote twice in any race, including the Al aska
House District 40 contest, covering the Northwest
Arctic and North Slope boroughs. "It's not |Iike
t here's double votes," she said.

He referenced a statenent submitted to the Al aska Di spatch News
from Lieutenant Governor Byron Mllott on "Primary Election
Unofficial Results" as follows:

Wth respect to the Shungnak precinct, the D vision
[of Elections] is aware of reports that the precinct
wor kers gave voters both Republican and the [ Denocrat]
ballot. The Denocratic Primary allows any qualified
voter to vote in their primary, so anyone who voted in
their primary was legally entitled to do so wunder
party rules. Mreover, a candidate's nanme appears on
only one ballot, not nultiple ballots, so no voter was
able to cast nore than one vote for any individual
candi dat e.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked M. Brefczynski to confirm that the
statenent was a direct statenent from Lieutenant Governor
Mal lott's office.

MR. BREFCZYNSKI answered correct and added as foll ows:

Aside from condensing the Denocratic ballot and it
listed all of the parties. So why would this be a
potential concern? Al aska statute speaks directly to
how nmany ballots a voter can request, you are only
allowed to choose one particular ballot to go into the
box.

10: 14: 19 AM

He detailed that following the report that both ballots were
given to voters, there were additional reports of further
potential concern comng out of Shungnak. He referenced a
Shungnak election worker who was interviewed by a television
reporter as follows:

She said she had not received training in a few years,
her quote is, "I did receive training a few years ago

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- August 29, 2016



in the last election they had for senators and stuff,
but | haven't had an election for a few years." Wy
would this be a potential concern? Again, Al aska
statute requires that the Division of Elections
director provide training for election officials prior
to the primary el ection.

MR. BREFCZYNSKI referenced a slide that showed the poll worker
application fromthe Division of Election website as well as the
training requirenents for fulltime and tenporary staff for the
Di vision of Elections

CHAI R STOLZE asked M. Brefczynski to verify that another issue
i n Shungnak pertained to the tinme of the open poll hours.

MR. BREFCZYNSKI replied that how long the poll was left open
remai ned unclear. He revealed that a worker was quoted to have
said, "I tried getting ahold of them" meaning the Division of
El ections, "Right after | <closed the polls at 9:00." He
explained that the actual poll closing was unclear because the
wor ker may have neant when the doors were |ocked or when she
st opped taking voters.

10: 16: 33 AM
He announced that he would next address Chefornak, District 38.
He referenced a slide and expl ained as foll ows:

This slide shows again the breakdown for the Chefornak
race by party and title ballot. You'll notice that the
parties that the nunbers all align, for every
Denocratic type primary, there were 86 voters, for
every Republican primary, there were 16 voters. The
state House race did not have a Republican candidate
If you add wup the US Senate and the US
Representative race, you get 102 total ballots or
total voters, but if you look at the D vision of
Election reports for the amount of cards that were
cast you have 204 cards cast, exactly double of what
voted in the races for U. S. Senate or U. S.
Representati ve.

He addressed Newtok, District 38 as foll ows:
The issues comng out of Newtok, the main issue is |
woul d say self-explanatory or easier of the issues to

understand. You'll see on the left under the 2016
primary, you wll notice the voter turnout which is

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- August 29, 2016



being reported by the Division of Elections is: 105.58
percent. Again, there's a breakdown of the race by
type of primary ballot, on the left the cards cast:
227. The race with the largest anmounts of votes was
the U S. House of Representative race which received
93 votes <conbined for Republican and Denocratic
ballots. There are 215 registered voters in the
precinct of Newtok, yet the precinct is reporting 227
cards that were casted; again, for 105.5 percent voter
t ur nout .

CHAIR STOLTZE renarked t hat Newt ok exhi bited spirited
patriotism

10: 18: 46 AM

MR. BREFCZYNSKI announced that the last precinct issue that
would be covered pertained to Copper Center, District 6. He
detailed that Copper Center enconpassed Chitina, Copper Center,
and Tazlina. He added that the precinct started outside of the
juncture for the G ennallen and R chardson hi ghways.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked M. Brefczynski to confirm that Copper
Center's issue pertained to not reporting their precinct
nunbers.

MR. BREFCZYNSKI reveal ed that Copper Center's unofficial nunbers
have been reported, but no nunbers were reported for 10 days.

CHAI R STOLTZE remarked that the Division of Elections nay have
an easy and |ogical explanation, but added that not reporting
votes was always a source of concern. He stated that a nefarious
notive was not being assuned, but the public was always
conforted with nore information to explain circunstances.

MR. BREFCZYNSKI reviewed the areas of concern for the four
precincts as foll ows:

1. House District 40-Shungnak: allegedly the voters were
allowed to vote on both Republican and Denocratic ballots
and the el ection workers did not receive proper training.

2. House District 38-Chefornak: the anobunt of voters was half
of that reported for ballots casted.

3. House District 38-Newtok: 105 percent turnout.

4. House District 6-Copper Center: 10-day delay before
reporting an unofficial election result.

10: 21: 36 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- August 29, 2016



CHAIR STOLTZE revealed that his office had received a |ot of
phone calls from people throughout the state regardi ng problens
or irregularities. He detailed that he invited people to submt
their issues in witing for the Division of Elections and the
conmttee to review He remarked that the commttee's neeting
was not an overly inclusive review, but the nore glaring issues
that caused questions were addressed. He said the conmittee's
intent was not to get into anecdotal information unless folks
were willing to cone forward. He asserted that the commttee
deferred only to things that were fairly clinical and easily
exam nabl e.

MR. BREFCZYNSKI concurred with Chair Stoltze and noted that the
data was fromthe Division of Elections as well.

10: 23: 57 AM
SENATOR MEYER asked if inmages from the 2016 Primary Election
woul d be presented to the conmittee as well. He recalled that he

saw people who were voting in the open. He asserted that voting
was supposed to be very private, but remarked that there nay be
an explanation for the voting in the open and added that the
situation may have involved a special-needs person. He asked
that the director address his query.

CHAIR STOLTZE commented that Senator Meyer's concern would
specifically be posed to Director Bahnke. He remarked that he
did not want to junp to a conclusion absent other backup
i nformation.

SENATOR MEYER stated that he was not aware of any problens in
District 6, Copper Center. He asked if the electoral race was
particularly close.

CHAIR STOLTZE explained that District 6 junped out because
results were reported over a week after the election. He noted
t hat Copper Center was a large precinct in the district.

MR. BREFCZYNSKI concurred and noted that Copper Center was the
fifth largest precinct wwthin District 6.

CHAIR STOLTZE reiterated that Director Bahnke would hopefully
provi de a sinple explanation.

10: 25: 53 AM
SENATOR MCGUI RE j oi ned the comm ttee neeting.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- August 29, 2016



SENATOR MEYER conmented that knowing if the race was close or
not was irrelevant because every vote matters and every vote was
inportant. He asserted that voting was the only power people had
over its governnent.

CHAI R STOLTZE opined that Alaska's elections were a |ot cleaner
t han the fanmous Lyndon Johnson races.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked M. Brefczynski to address the |anguage
used on ballots and inquired if there was sone federal oversite.

MR. BREFCZYNSKI replied that the conmittee was provided with a
packet of nedia articles and noted that two articles addressed
the Lieutenant CGovernor saying that there didn't appear to be
any issues regarding native |anguages on the ballot. He added
that he net with Departnment of Justice officials as well.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that the conmittee received a nmeno from
Legal Services, Wrk Oder No. 29-LS1729, which addressed
questions the commttee had, specifically on legal renedies
shoul d an el ection have problens. He asked M. Bullard if he had
any general comments on the nmeno.

10: 28: 08 AM

ALPHEUS BULLARD, Attorney, Legislative Legal Services, Juneau,
Al aska, addressed general renedies for election issues as
fol |l ows:

Start with a recount that can be requested by the
losing candidate wthin five days of a primry
election. If there's a recount, all ballots, including
absentee ballots that have cone in before the recount,
will be tabulated again by the Division of Elections.
Beyond a recount there is a procedure for contesting
the results of an election under AS 15.20.540 and
there are also provisions for appeal to the courts and
provisions for appeal to the, in the case of a state
el ection for the legislature, appeal to the body that
the | osing candi date woul d have been in. Those are the
nost imrediate and first step renedies for a |osing
candidate or in some cases, ten voters, affected
voters who are aggrieved by the results.

10: 30: 59 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE asked M. Bullard to confirm that a recount could
be initiated by any ten voters. He inquired if the ten voters

SENATE STA COW TTEE -9- August 29, 2016



had to reside within the election district or just voters of
Al aska.

MR. BULLARD replied as foll ows:

The statute provides that they have to be qualified
voters and | would interpret that to be voters who are
affected because their ballots are at issue, so they
would have to be from well, in the case of the
primary for the state l|legislature, they would have to
be fromthe appropriate House district.

SENATOR MCGUI RE asked if there was a catchall-provision for the
state to decide beyond the percentage threshold to initiate a
recount based on a state interest in abnormal reports from
precincts, suspi cion  of vot er fraud, or suspicion  of
m sinformation given to voters.

MR, BULLARD answered as foll ows:

The only case in which a recount will occur if it is
not requested is if the director finds that there's
been a tie-vote between the candidates, other than
that, to catch up the majority of these incidences we
have a division-zone process of reviewng votes and
the final certification of votes and that is normally
the review which all of our elections go through.

SENATOR MCCGUI RE suggested that future |egislators consider other
reasons for a recount and a review.

10: 33: 36 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE recogni zed that Representative Vazquez had joi ned
the commttee neeting.

MR. BULLARD announced that he would answer specific questions
regarding the recount procedure, contesting an election, or
appealing to the Legislature or the Congress.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if M. Bullard was famliar wth the
ci rcunstances regarding the Finkelstein v. Stout and the MG I
v. Thomas cases.

MR. BULLARD descri bed the cases as foll ows:

In the McGIIl v. Thomas case, |'m not sure that |
woul d describe what happened as a necessary renedy.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- August 29, 2016



Some sort of steps are missing, in ny research it was
a superior court <case so of course it has no
precedential value; that election was set aside by the
superior court, a result that was not appealed and |
believe from l|looking at the mnutes of the House
journal that the then governor found a third person to
appoint to the seat, finding a vacancy in the case
that neither candidate had been elected, then I
believe there was a subsequent special election to
fill the seat.

10: 35: 53 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE asked M. Bullard to verify that the election was
essentially rerun.

MR. BULLARD replied that was his inperfect understanding.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked M. Bullard to clarify that there was a
special election and there was an outcone which may or may not
have been different in the primary, but it was rerun.

MR. BULLARD replied that was his understandi ng.

CHAI R STOLTZE added that McG Il v. Thomas was a case where there
was a primary loss, then one candidate ran as a wite-in and
there was a contested election that went to the court system He
asked that M. Bullard address the general facts and renedies
for the Finkelstein v. Stout case.

MR, BULLARD answered as foll ows:

A close election, the candidate that was initially
found to have | ost was found to have won follow ng the
recount; again, a close nunber of votes. The division
certified that recount against the initial victor and
then there was another election recount and the Al aska
Suprene Court upheld the outcone of that election
finding that the errors of voting officials would not
be held against the voters casting the ballots which
were not as the law required them to. But the court
found that the errors in the ballot were due to on the
part of election officials and that election and its
results were upheld. The court found, | should say
that the official mstakes had not effected the
integrity of the electoral process, therefore they
wer e uphel d.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- August 29, 2016



10: 38: 05 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE pointed out that the Division of Elections during
the voting process that M. Bullard described determ ned sone
formulas on how votes would be casted and noted that there was
term nol ogy about "3.96 votes." He noted that his only reference
on fractional votes had since been repealed and that had to do
with "three fifths." He asked if M. Bullard could explain the
division's renedies or did he have a deep enough understandi ng
of fractional votes.

MR. BULLARD replied as foll ows:

| think that the case that you are referring to is
Hanmond v. Hickel, which is another case in the sane
line of cases and that was where the formula canme in
for the counting of votes and that was a case where
there was a series of what the court found to be
isolated incidences of irregularity that the court
found did not cumulatively considered change the
el ection enough to render the electoral outcone in
doubt. The court held in that instance that if a bias
cannot be shown that even significant deviations from
the norm would not ampunt to nml conduct unless there
was a knowi ng non-conpliance with the |aw or whether
the electoral officials had displayed a reckless
indifference to the nornms established by statute, that
it wasn't enough to show malconduct that it was
necessary for the plaintiffs to show that the
mal conduct changed the el ection results.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked M. Bullard to define "mal conduct."”

10: 40: 06 AM
MR BULLARD detailed as foll ows:

The court defined mal conduct in that case, they define
mal conduct on the part of an election official to
require evidence of bias resulting from significant
devi ati on from statutorily or constitutionally
prescribed norms and held that plaintiffs had the
burden of proving that malconduct on the part of
election officials and proving that that malconduct
woul d have changed the results of the el ection.

SENATOR W ELECHOWMSKI reiterated that District 6 did not report

their results until 10 days after the primary. He noted that
District 6 had 20 voters and stated that he believed the race

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- August 29, 2016



was decided by nore than 20 votes. He asked if M. Bullard
believed that a court would intervene in a situation that
occurred in District 6 and overturn the results or require a new
el ecti on.

CHAI R STOLTZE clarified that the commttee's intent was for the
Director Bahnke to tal k about the process issue. He said he did
not think the commttee or staff thought what occurred in
District 6 was relevant to the outcone of the election.

10: 42: 10 AM

MR. BREFCZYNSKI clarified that the slide showi ng Copper Center's
precinct results arbitrarily showed the U S. Senator race and
was not meant to single out Denocrats.

CHAI R STOLTZE disclosed that the margin in the District 6 race
was al nost 20 percentage points and the reporting delay was not
relevant in the process, but not reporting for a week and a half
required an explanation. He opined that a reporting delay in
anot her precinct m ght have been a bigger issue.

SENATOR W ELECHOABKI noted that the m stakes nade in District 38
did not appear to be enough to change the election's result. He
asked if the mstakes made would be sonething that the court
woul d require a new el ection or overturn the results.

MR. BULLARD answered as foll ows:

| cannot speak to any of these ongoing elections or
how significant some ballots may be. The end anal ysis
if a court examnes this issue will be the cunul ative
effect of those ballots anmobngst all of the ballots
casted in those elections and whether they would
affect the results.

CHAIR STOLTZE clarified that the percentages were fairly wide in
District 38, but the issue was a fairly illustrative exanple of
potential delivery of nore than one ballot. He renarked that
explaining the nmultiple ballot dynamc irrespective of the
outcone was in the public's best interest. He specified that the
committee intended to clarify the issue of followng the
st at ut es.

10: 44: 34 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI noted that District 40 was a very close
race were the candidates were separated by 3 or 4 votes. He
reiterated that two ballots were reportedly given to people. He

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- August 29, 2016



said his guess was the people wanted to vote for the House
menbers as well as vote in the Senate and congressional races on
the Republican ballots. He asked M. Bullard if there was enough
of an error to cause the court to overturn the el ection.

MR BULLARD answered as foll ows:

Once again, | really don't want to specul ate about any
of the ongoing elections. | don't know what the vote
totals are, | don't know what the nunber of ballots

are, what the proportional values of any question
votes may be.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked hypothetically if a race was
separated by a few votes and people received ballots in both the
Denocratic and Republican primary, was receiving two ballots the
sort of thing that a court would require a new el ection.

MR, BULLARD answered as foll ows:

It's a violation of our statutes on what ballots need
to be provided. | don't know whether the necessary
bias is there or what a court would find. This is not
a situation the specifics of which have been addressed
by an Al aska court before.

10: 46: 31 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE pointed out that the overseer of the state's
el ections, the lieutenant governor, was acutely aware of the
dynamics of primary voting. He revealed that the |ieutenant

governor commented on primary voting follow ng the 2010 primary
el ection about the need for rural Alaskans to nmake thenselves
available to vote in the primary so that they could influence
i nportant federal elections. He said others have established the
i mportant dynamic and he surmsed that the need to choose was
obviated if a person receives both ballots. He opined that
whet her a change woul d have occurred was open to specul ation.

SENATOR MEYER asked when the federal governnment or the
Department of Justice would get involved, especially in the case
where the process was flawed or conpromised in three districts
that have a lot of mnority folks as well as folks that do not
speak English as their first |anguage.

MR BULLARD answered as foll ows:

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- August 29, 2016



| don't know at what point the federal governnent

m ght involve itself. 1 wll say historically that
we' ve had el ections W th greater voti ng
irregularities. | think the H ckel v. Hammond case

that was nentioned earlier in which the federa
governnent did not involve itself.

SENATOR HUGA NS asked if communities had the autonony to
invalidate a | ocal election.

10: 49: 58 AM
MR. BULLARD answered as foll ows:

| think that in this case all of these elections are
run by the state and so | don't know what basis the
| ocal official would have for overturning if you are
talking about a local option election, that's an
el ection conducted by the Division of Elections.

SENATOR COCGHI LL asked if the test M. Bullard was tal king about
with the courts is the actual statutory |anguage plus how they
view their integrity decision, for exanple, the notive. He
pointed out that the plain statutory |anguage that M. Bullard
said was violated, but training |ooked like it was not put forth
statutorily. He asked if the irregularity he noted would rise to
a |l evel of nalfeasance.

10: 51: 30 AM

MR. BULLARD replied as foll ows:
Again, |I'm not going to speculate on the actions of
this election or any electoral official. | wll tel

you that there's sort of a consolation of factors that
a court considers and one of the first things is to
make sure that every vote and every ballot that is
casted that they try to honor the voter's intent first
and forenost, until the point at which say ballots are
wongly distributed or sonething, at the point that
the court determnes that would affect the election,
then the desire to make sure that every ballot count
has to be balanced against the integrity of the
election as a whole. In deciding at which point this
mal f easance has becone an issue after the election has
taken place, the courts wll frequently look at a
mandatory statute. | don't renenber the exact | anguage
of our training statutes or election officials, but
they becone sort of a directory if the departure from

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- August 29, 2016



that mandatory statute is not so great, that they

can't honor the will of the voter, then they will not
enforce it. In other cases, it was Finkelstein v.
St out if we have a statute that prevents an

unregi stered voter from voting, that's one they are
going to enforce in a mandatory way because that's a
provision that is designed to ensure the integrity of
the electoral process in the sanme way that a statute
that relates to election official training will not.

10: 53: 50 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL remarked that determ ning the enphatic nature of
the statute for enforcing a single ballot for a single person
under a primary el ection would have to be addressed.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked that M. Bullard recap the statutes that
were potentially violated and briefly describe them

MR. BULLARD replied that he did not want to speculate as to
whi ch statutes may have been viol at ed.

CHAI R STOLTZE stated that he would specul ate regarding the one-
person-one-ballot issue. He asked if the circunstance described
by individual voters and election officials regarding nore than
one ballot given to one voter would potentially violate the
stat ute.

10: 55: 29 AM
MR. BULLARD answered as foll ows:

It is nost definitely a violation of the statute.

CHAIR STOLTZE comrented that M. Bullard went further than he
did and had taken "potential"™ out of his reply, a statenent that
he consi dered to be good.

MR. BULLARD conti nued as foll ows:

It is a violation of the statute. How that violation
woul d be construed when it cones tine or if there is
an election contest, whether the courts would find
that the right to vote is a superseding nandate, |
don't know, this is a novel situation in Al aska and |
haven't found anot her exanple of voters being supplied
with two primary ballots in a very close election. So
| do not know how a court would come down in this
i nst ance.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- August 29, 2016



CHAI R STOLTZE asked if M. Bullard would have the sane comments
with the training statute as well

MR. BULLARD replied as foll ows:

Same comments, but | think that the rule of reason is
that the, | don't know that the training statute is
one that is going to be held to have the sane cache
and inportance as a citizen's right to vote.

CHAIR STOLTZE remarked that the state has statutes which have
pretty clear intent, but the |egislative counsel's opinion that
it may not matter because the other |awraking body, the court
system says it is not inportant. He asked why the state has
el ection statutes in the first place and noted that he did not
expect an answer to his a question.

10: 58: 08 AM

JOSIE BAHNKE, Director, D vision of Elections, Juneau, Al aska,
said she has served in her position since Cctober 2015. She
noted that the division is really fortunate to have experienced
managers who have served in various capacities throughout the
years. She said she had a lengthy prepared statenent, and it
should be pretty clear that there are concerns surrounding
el ection worker training and of polling irregularities in
Al aska's rural precincts. She said she reviewed the commttee's
presentation this nmorning, and she wll respond to the four
concerns outlined. She added that she would like to sunmmarize
plans for the primary el ection and speak to what is happening in
Juneau this week. The election is active right now and wll not
be certified until later this week, she explained, when the
state review board has conpleted its audit of the election
mat eri al s.

CHAI R STOLTZE stated that Ms. Bahnke's delivery of her testinony
is right on target, and he wuld |ike to give her sone
uninterrupted tine. He expressed that the intent is to address
the process without interrupting the conduct of the election
itself. "There should only be voting once, and that's on or
before the 16th of August,"” he added.

11: 00: 15 AM

M5. BAHNKE noted that the |ieutenant governor is traveling and
sends his regrets, but he looks forward to being fully
transparent and cooperative in working with the conmttee and to
be responsive to any matters the conmttee may w sh to pursue

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- August 29, 2016



with the division of elections or with his office. She said that
the core mandate at the division is to ensure that every
qualified voter has the opportunity to cast a ballot and to have
their vote count. To neet that mandate and in preparation for
the 2016 election cycle, the division held a two-day election-
prep kickoff neeting here in Juneau in February. It included
regi onal supervisors and election nmanagenent staff, she
expl ai ned. The purpose was to start discussing election priority
i ssues, new or potential changes in the wupcom ng year—which
there were many, and an inplenentation strategy. Anong all of
the election admnistration topics that were covered, a great
deal of enphasis was placed on election worker recruitnment and
training. She said that the overview of staff training is
required, and she submtted a training plan to the |ieutenant
governor on March 1. She added that she is happy to provide that
to the commttee.

M5. BAHNKE said that at the February neeting staff was really
excited about the ability to incorporate technology and enploy
sone fresh ideas into the statewde training plan. She noted
that the division had offered sone tutorials, but this year "we
went all in" in order to be nore cost effective and to provide a
nore interactive experience for the election workers. There was
a presentation by KTOO at the 360 North studio during the
nmeeting, and the division contracted with KTOO to conduct five
live election worker training meetings using streanming at its
studio in Juneau, he stated. The training is on the division's
website and on over 300 DVDs that were provided to regional
offices and rural precincts. She said she is proud to be the
first state agency to deliver training this way in an effort to
save on travel costs. The training was provided at a m nimnal
cost, saving the state about $225,000 while still being
i nnovative and responsive to all Al askan voters. The division
al so provided in-person training, she noted, which is required
for |anguage assistance precincts and were done in St. Mary's,
Bethel, Dillingham Fairbanks, Anchorage, and the Mat-Su area.

11: 04: 12 AM

She said there was a total of 1,571 election workers who
received the four-hour training course. She noted that there
were questions about the training plan that is required by |aw.
O her states have election training certificate progranms, but
Al aska does not, and certainly this is a huge area of focus for
the division. On Election Day, "It's our election officials who
really help us nmeet our core mandate in ensuring that Al askans
have a meani ngful opportunity to vote, and so we put a lot of
faith and trust in them" Qoviously, there were a few instances

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- August 29, 2016



where the training was not provided, she stated, and once the
dust settles with the primary, the el ection managenent team wil |
regroup to address those training gaps going into the genera
el ection.

CHAIR STOLTZE noted there was a comment in the press attributed
to Ms. Bahnke that characterized the election process as part of
an ongoi ng training exercise. He asked for clarification.

M5. BAHNKE responded that she was not aware of having said that.
Training is an activity that happens before an el ection—ot on
El ection Day, she clarified.

CHAIR STOLTZE said he wll let the press "ness wth that,
because they are the ones that reported it."

SENATOR COGHI LL asked if the training requires a "sign-off" or
some accountability for staff who have received trai ning.

11: 07: 56 AM

M5. BAHNKE answered that detailed training and work records are
kept for precinct workers. Wth respect to the Shungnak
precinct, the division learned that the precinct chair gave
voters both ballots when the results were reported to the None
of fice on Wednesday norning. She said that the polls closed at 8
o' clock, and the precinct attenpted to call the Nome office to
report results. On election night the None office has 11 phone
lines and receives reports from about 95 precincts through the
hand- count process, so the [Shungnak] chair called in the next
norning. She noted that the election boards are trained to
provide only one ballot during the primary, and it wasn't unti

| ast Friday when they received the precinct materials back from
Shungnak that they could really verify that the election board
did, in fact, issue both ballots. She said the state review
board will be reviewing that today, and her goal is to certify
all of House District 40 this afternoon. It is one of the first
things that the state review board is working on here in Juneau,
she added.

She said the training for that precinct was provided in Kotzebue
in June 2014, and "They did not participate in any kind of
training that we had offered—six teleconference trainings, and
all our election workers were advised to do that. W also send
out our polling place procedures for the hand-count conmunities
and al so, our new training DVD. So, while we try in earnest to
ensure that our election workers are prepared, sonetines they
don't attend, and there's really no ramfications for them not

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- August 29, 2016



to attend,"” she added. For exanple, they are not asked not to
work on Election Day if they have not received training.

11:10: 00 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE said, regarding providing two ballots, the nedia
quoted [soneone who said] that it was not a big deal because
nobody voted twice in the Denocratic primary. "Having been
involved in the political process, is it a possibility that the
dynam cs are changed if people have decided to vote just in the
national elections, which there were contested primaries on the
Republican ballot if they had opted to take that ballot instead
and actually may have been illegally given that ballot if they
weren't eligible under the statute. Did that change the dynam cs
of the election in validating it, sonetinme, and on the election
ballot, if you vote for two candidates in a—you don't get to
vote for both of those.” Such a ballot will be invalidated by a
conbi nation of state law and el ection procedures, he noted. He
said that, in fairness, he has dealt with the nmedia and the
public process and sonetinmes when his quotes are verbatim he is
really enbarrassed, but he offered to give Ms. Bahnke a chance
to "maybe clarify on the dynamcs of the inportance of two
ball ots for one voter."

M5. BAHNKE said, absolutely, this is a very serious issue that
the division has been |looking at. Going into the general
el ection, voters will only have one ballot, but the fact that
the primary has two ballots obliges her division to do a better
j ob educating voters about the two-ballot system "I think it's
definitely something that we wll evaluate, again after this
election is certified," she stated, but if voting irregularities
i n Shungnak appear to have changed the outcone of the race, "we
are absolutely considering options of what to do." She added
that she is working closely with the Departnment of Law (DOL) in
eval uating those options.

11:12: 58 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS noted that M. Bahnke said she gave the
| i eutenant governor a training plan in March, so that is about
five and a half nonths leading up to the primary election. He
asked for the chronology and m | estones of the training plan to
acconplish all of the tasks.

M5. BAHNKE replied that the division is divided into four
regions for the purposes of admnistering elections, and
regional offices are conducting training. The nonths of Mrch
through June are spent recruiting election workers, doing

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- August 29, 2016



polling place agreenents with the various polling places, and
del i vering training.

11:14: 42 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS noted Ms. Bahnke was very specific in saying she
had trained 1,571 people, "so you had a pretty good count of
i ndi vidual s.” He then asked how she knows that figure.

M5. BAHNKE said, in advance of the primary election, she
produced a briefing for the |ieutenant governor, and to conpile
that, the regional supervisors provided their exact nunbers. The
briefing is available to the conmttee, she noted.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked how many peopl e were not trained.
M5. BAHNKE sai d she woul d have to get back on that.

SENATOR HUGGE NS noted that there is a primary com ng up, and he
assunes that there is a renedial training portion of the March
training plan. He asked Ms. Bahnke to describe it.

M5. BAHNKE said that she is planning to reconvene the regional
supervisors in the next few weeks or nonths to do a post-
election briefing, and this is definitely an area they wll
focus on. She is required to provide in-person training to many
of the | anguage-assi stance communities, and "we've also talked
about conducting our four-hour training at AFN [Al aska
Federation of Natives convention] in Fairbanks this year in
advance of the (general election.” She said that is a
conversation that she will have with regional supervisors, and
she will be happy to provide a revised plan.

11:17: 05 AM

SENATOR MEYER noted that Ms. Bahnke will review the process and
training for District 40. He asked about the 105 percent turnout
in District 38.

M5. BAHNKE said that some smaller precincts throughout the state
hand count the ballots after the polls close on Election Day
using tally books. The results of those counts are called into
the appropriate regional offices, and data are entered into the
regional [d obal Election Mnagenent] (GEMS) conputers, the
ball ot tabulation system and then the data is uploaded to the
host GEMS server in Juneau, she explained. She added that on
el ection night, with regard to Chefornak, the election workers
taking precinct phone calls in Nonme had a data entry error.
Chefornak was entered with the wong nunber of voted ballots,

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- August 29, 2016



but she brought that to the attention of the state review board
this nmorning, and they will review it and nmake adjustnents.

11:19: 03 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE asked how adjustnents are made to undo a double
vot e.

M5. BAHNKE gave the exanple of Newtok where it appears that the
nunber of ballots cast was entered as 151 instead of 51. The
totals are now correct. The results that are posted on the
website are wunofficial, she explained, and the data entry
m st akes were fixed and disclosed to the state review board. The
board also verifies the results prior to certification of an
el ection. She said the review board nenbers are the ones who
actually adjust the mstakes on the GEMS server. Simlar issues
happened in Chefornak and Newt ok, she added.

SENATOR MEYER stated that sonme statutes were broken and asked
how one certifies an election that was not |egal.

M5. BAHNKE referred to the Departnent of Law.
SENATOR MEYER asked:

If you were a candidate in District 38 or District 40,
and there may be other districts we don't even know
about whose el ection was determned or finalized based
on the results of the primary, would you feel good
about this election?

M5. BAHNKE answered that she is in the process of convening the
state review board, a 10-nenber bipartisan group, to review al
of the ballots cast. She explained that the bipartisan group
goes through a very stringent auditing process, and not unti
they are conplete with their work, can she answer that question.

11:22: 17 AM
REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked if training is nmandatory for
el ecti on workers.

M5. BAHNKE said statute calls for conprehensive training, but
she does not believe the word "mandatory" is used.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked if the answer is yes, it 1is
required by statute.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- August 29, 2016



M5. BAHNKE answered that AS 15.01.107 requires the division to
have a conprehensive training program

REPRESENTATI VE = VAZQUEZ asked about consequences for an
i ndi vi dual who does not participate in training.

MS. BAHNKE said there are no sanctions for election workers who
do not attend training.

REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ asked how many workers who participated
in the primary el ection were not trained.

M5. BAHNKE said those nunbers will be provided later. Due to the
cl ose House race in District 40 and the potential for a recount
request, the state review board is working to certify those
results later today. She noted her prepared witten statenent,

and said, "I don't know that | can really respond nuch nore
until the results have been certified,” but stated that she is
happy to listen and take notes regarding the conmttee's

concerns and follow up as soon as nore information and anal ysis
is available. She said she may need to return to the process,
and there are staff here taking notes, but she would like to
nmake herself available to appear at future comrittee hearings in
person once the results are certified and she can provide nore
i nformation.

11: 25: 32 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE said he understood the constraints going into this
process, but he wanted the neeting to be tinmely as well.

SENATOR MCGUI RE thanked the director for attending, saying that
the first test in a career like this is the willingness to cone
forward during difficult situations and answer questions from
el ected | eaders, "so you passed the first test, and | conplinent

you for it." She added that this is not one person's fault, but
there is an issue here that is very serious, which is a series
of system c breakdowns. "But we all need to work through it

together,"” and being here in person helps. She then asked if M.
Bahnke believes that she or the governor has the authority in
regulation or in her executive powers to hold off on the regular
certification of the election in "this" district until there can
be a conversation wth the Departnent of Justice regarding the
federal Voting Rights Act and with the Al aska Departnent of Law
to be sure that "you have crossed every 'T' and dotted every
"1'." She said she is concerned that if this is certified and
the wi nner does not prevail in a future special election or
audit, the inpact on voter norale and confidence wll be

SENATE STA COW TTEE -23- August 29, 2016



devastating and possibly wunrecoverable for generations. She
noted that Ms. Bahnke is constrained in how she can answer sone
guestions and st at ed:

But do you believe you have the authority—do you
believe the governor has the authority—+to go ahead
and, in this case because of t he speci al
consi derati on, hold off on this march toward
certification?

11:28:19 AM

M5. BAHNKE said she is commtted "to getting this right.” It is
really inportant. She agreed that she wants to be open and
honest in conmmunications with the Legislature. She will take any
nmeasure under the advisenent of DOL and take those steps to get
it right. "I don't know if the authority is there, but | can
certainly examne that along with folks in the adm ni stration.

SENATOR MCGUI RE said Ms. Bahnke is in uncharted territory. There
are basic standards. If it mkes it to the court, she stated

courts are reluctant to permt what they call "wholesale
di senfranchi sement” of qualified electors through no fault of
their own, and 98 percent of the tine courts will be reluctant

to overturn a result. That said, on the other side is the issue
of mal feasance and if it has a nmeaningful inmpact on results. She
said her main concern is in Noatak, Shungnak, and Chefornak,
with the issue of two ballots given to individual voters, where
there is 105 percent of a comunity voting, and where there is
the perception of 100 ballots mssing. "Those are the kinds of
thing that, | think, raise serious concerns.” Some of these
other things, Ilike reporting 10 days later as the statutes
all ows, can be dealt with through training. The issue of closing
the polling station in Point Hope and not com ng back until noon
t he next day can be addressed with training, she added:

| don't nmean to suggest that they're not also
important, but to ne these three rise up to the leve
of serious concerns, because you're talking about an
el ection that will be decided by a nere, potentially,
two handful s of votes.

She encouraged Ms. Bahnke to consider her choices and options
and to reach out to the lifelines that she has with the DOL, the
Department of Justice, and the attorney general, because there
wi Il be challenges and she hates to see Ms. Bahnke go through a
process that does not | eave every stone unturned.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 24- August 29, 2016



11: 31: 34 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOMNSKI noted that it seenms that every election
encounters problens, and this time around there is a very close
el ection. There are thousands of people to train, and he is
wondering, from a big-picture perspective, if Al aska has | ooked
into voting by mail. It seenms that would solve a lot of the
problens. "You don't have to train 2,000 workers all across the
state—a nassive state; you don't have to worry about who's
getting the right ballot or not—+t's done internally; it just
seens like that solves a lot of the problens,” and he asked if
the division is considering that.

M5. BAHNKE said the division is always contenplating Al aska's
future elections. The |ieutenant governor has expressed interest
in evaluating sone options |ike vote by nail. She said she would
like to reassure the commttee that the integrity and security
of Alaska's election system is well-noted and has been
docunented in many places, so she takes this very seriously. For
the future, she said, the division is working closely with the
Muni ci pality of Anchorage in evaluating its proposals to vote by
mai | by April of next year. She said:

We're working closely with them to coordinate things
like the voter's signature verification and | ooking at
the different systens.

She revealed that out of our 516,000 voters in this state,
210,000 are located right there within the nunicipality, she
sai d:

When the useful life of Al aska's equi pnent that we've
been successfully patching together and has worked
very, very well for wus, when we start |ooking at
replacing that system certainly, vote-by-mail is
definitely sonething of interest to the |ieutenant

governor and the division.

11: 34: 30 AM

SENATOR COGHI LL asked that a followup neeting occur after
certification, and he opined that the accountability for
training will need to be addressed in statute.

CHAIR STOLTZE said his idea of a neeting in Wasilla being the
| ast one is | ong gone now.

REPRSENTATI VE LYNN asked if the election worker in District 40
recei ved the training.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -25- August 29, 2016



MS. BAHNKE answered that the last time that election worker
attended training was in 2014.

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN asked if training is provided every
el ection, since 2014 was the previous election.

M5. BAHNKE said, "W try to provide this." The division focuses
a lot of its training efforts on producing an interactive DVD
because of the travel freeze and budget cuts, so not everybody
received in-person training. Regional training was not held in
Kot zebue or Barrow. She added:

W are re-evaluating that at this tine, and it appears
that we need to focus our efforts up north going into
t he general election.

11: 36: 30 AM
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if the sane person worked in 2014.

M5. BAHNKE answered that the precinct chair has worked for the
di vision since the 2012 primary and general el ections.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked what evidence M. Bahnke has that a
wor ker has received training for the 2016 el ecti on.

M5. BAHNKE answered that the division pays election workers to
attend training, so their timesheets as well as sign-in sheets
are sent in to the regional offices.

REPERSENATI VE LYNN asked if this election worker was paid.

M5. BAHNKE replied that the worker was paid for work on Election
Day .

11: 38: 03 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE conmented that this large cadre of election
workers who just work local and state elections are active
comunity peopl e, and he expressed concern over casting
aspersions by using the terns "nualfeasance" and "m sconduct,"
because a bad result can be due to an honest mstake. The
el ection worker mstake is not from malice, he said, and "the
act, nonetheless, has a deleterious result.” He asserted that
there are incredible people, including in his own precinct, who
are active and involved citizens. He said if there were
violations in |law, he does not believe they were intentional by
el ection workers but fromlack of training and conmunication. He

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 26- August 29, 2016



added that he wants to conplinent those hundreds of people who
come out for not the greatest pay and perhaps w thout overtine
conpensation. "Just like I'd hate to criticize the wunpaid or
under conpensated jurors in a court system for bad results,” he
expl ained. The last thing he wants to do is focus on the
el ection workers, he said, but clearly there were m stakes nade.

11: 40: 00 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noted that the governor's budget is going
to get rolled out in a couple of nonths, and he asked if M.
Bahnke has plans to ask for additional resources for training to
deal with the problens that occurred during this election.

MS5. BAHNKE answered, "W're set for this election cycle for this
year." She said the division received a mltiple-year
appropriation to conduct elections. She detailed that when the
division starts to look at the primary for 2018, t hat
conversation wll begin, but for now the division wll do
whatever it takes, going into the general elections, to ensure
that the election workers are supported and have what they need.
She st at ed:

W want them to have a successful experience for
voters in their conmunities, and, so, we'll be |ooking
at that again.

11:41: 14 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE asked how nuch tine she will need to respond to
t he questions today; there are about five people fromthe public
who have signed up to speak, and one is from the affected
region. He said to take the tine she needs to respond to the
sl i deshow presentati on.

M5. BAHNKE said she is done. She added that she was going to
just take notes and follow up later.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked Ms. Bahnke to descri be her schedul e.
MS5. BAHNKE answered that the hand-count verification process is
occurring today. She specified that 40-tenporary el ection
wor kers were at Centennial Hall. She detail ed:

Those 40 precincts, one randomy selected out of each

house district to do a hand-count verification. They
wll be down there for the next few days.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -27- August 29, 2016



M5. BAHNKE said the state review board is scheduled to certify
the primary el ection on Friday, Septenber 02, 2016, and added:

Al t hough, per state law, the requirenent is the day of
Labor Day, maybe Septenber 6th, but we'll be then next
certifying the ballot for the general elections, so
t hose deadl i nes come back to back.

She said she will be regrouping with regional supervisors. She
revealed that following Election Day, there 1is all the
preparations and work that goes on in the regional offices. She
noted that the division concluded its final 10-day upload | ast
Friday around mdnight, and all election materials are now here
in the director's office in addition to all the ballots and
precinct registers. She believes that there are still five
precincts left; for now, she is focusing on that this week and
answering questions for the state review board, perhaps take a
breat her and then gear right back up for the general election.

11:45: 01 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE asked Ms. Bahnke to describe the nenbership of the
revi ew board.

M5. BAHNKE replied that all nenbers are from Juneau: two
Republ i cans, two Denocrats, the remaining six are nonpartisan or
undecl ar ed.

CHAIR STOLTZE  expressed appreciation for Ms. Bahnke' s
attendance. He asserted that M. Bahnke's responses cleared up
some things and maybe rai sed questions on others; however, that
is an inportant part of the Legislature' s process.

CHAI R STOLTZE opened public testinony.

11:46: 40 AM

LUKE VELLES, representing hinmself, Barrow, Al aska, revealed that
he voted in District 40, the Browerville Precinct. He said he
and his wife were frustrated that there were challenges wth
voting. He disclosed that he was a registered Republican and his
intent was to vote the open ballot. He detailed that he was
informed that he would need to vote a question-ballot instead.
After reviewng the Division of Election website that said, "Any
registered voter can vote the open ballot,"”™ the precinct
relented and allowed himto vote the open ballot.

He detailed that he contacted |ocal and state officials to alert
them that electoral workers informed him that they were trained

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 28- August 29, 2016



on ballot subm ssion. He revealed that a regional director from
the Division of Elections contacted himto et him know that the
division had difficulty recruiting in Barrow and the workers
were not trained as described. He noted that he had sent a
nmessages to Representative Nageak and the Republican Party. He
opined that the focus was on letting Republicans vote the open
bal | ot .

MR, WVELLES summarized that an effectiveness of training was
definitely at stake and he questioned whether the primry
el ection in District 40 should be certified. He pointed out that
t he deci sion whether or not to allow the doubl e-counted votes in
House District 40-Shungnak woul d have an inpact on the closely
contested race.

11: 52: 53 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE remarked that M. Wlles' comentary was the
reason why the comrittee wanted to have the discussion. He
reiterated that the commttee did not want to influence the
el ection, but to have the process-issues before the public prior
to certification. He suggested that M. Wlles' renedy would
probably be in the courts afterwards. He restated that the
committee's intention was to restrict the discussion to the 2016
primary process and el ection issues.

11: 54: 03 AM

PAUL D. KENDALL, representing hinmself, Anchorage, Al aska,
revealed that he was a U S. Senate candidate in the Republican
primary for the current year. He disclosed that he was confused
when he was presented with two ballots when he voted in the
primary election. He noted that he had intended to vote in
protest against Representative MIllett by either l|eaving his
sel ection blank or witing in a candidate. He pointed out that
he did not have a wite-in option and suggested that a wite-in
opportunity be presented in future primary ballots. He added
that counting no-votes should also be tracked as well. He
sumarized that all candidates should wuniformy answer 100
guestions for voters to review, the ballot process should be
under 24-hour video review, and certification should be noved to
Anchor age.

11:59: 33 AM

M CHAEL CHAMBERS, representing hinmself, Anchorage, Al aska
revealed that he had posted a narrative on the internet and
noted receiving a coment on his website from an Eagle River
voter. He detailed that the Eagle R ver voter questioned
receiving two ballots and noted his belief that a person has a

SENATE STA COW TTEE -29- August 29, 2016



constitutional right to vote for a candidate that was best
suited and qualified to represent his views. He added that he
was concerned wth Lieutenant Governor Mllott overseeing the
el ection in Novenber and was against mail-in ballots.

12:01: 40 PM

EUGENE CARL HABERMAN, representing hinself, Wasilla, Al aska,
stated that the nost inportant decisions a governing body has is
dealing with elections, certifying elections, and overseeing the
budget. He asserted that w thout an election being correct and
transparent, the decisions nmade afterward were invalid.

He questioned that an inexperienced director was appointed to
the Division of Elections. He added that not know ng the nunber
of people that were trained puts a serious question of
legitimacy for the director. He asserted that training el ectoral
wor kers was key.

He summarized that allowing a properly notified public to
observe elections and ballot certification would ensure that
el ections were going to be "kosher."

12: 07: 44 PM

DAVI D EASTMAN, representing hinself, Wasilla, Al aska, noted that
he was a candidate in the nost recent primary election. He
detailed that he asked to be allowed to observe the vote
counting process after the election but was told that he had to
obtain permssion from the director of the D vision of
Elections. He revealed that he attenpted to <contact the
director, but was told that she was wunavailable. He said
ultimately he was not able to observe the vote counting process.
He added that a nunber of other candidates had to work through
t he chal | enge of observing the vote counting process as well.

He asked the committee if a candidate has the right to observe
the vote counting process. He remarked that if the candi date has
the right to observe the vote counting process, then the
Division of Elections does not take the candidate's right very
seriously. He stated that his hope was for greater transparency
going forward with statutory enforcenent.

12:11: 28 PM

DEBORAH BRCLLI NI, representing herself, Anchorage, Al aska
detailed that her son registered to vote for the first tine as a
Republican, but the Division of Elections had no record of his
registration. She asserted that Division of Elections was not

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 30- August 29, 2016



comuni cating with the Republican Party and her son now believes
that the process was corrupt.

12: 13: 44 PM

M KE COONS, representing hinself, Palnmer, Al aska, suggested that
training for election staff should be nmandatory, online video
conference calls be used for training rather than DVDs, review
the constant issue of wvoting districts with nore than 100
percent voter turnout, get rid of early wvoting, and not
certifying the election in District 40 wuntil the issue was
resolved. He noted that he did not have a problem with voting
for the 2016 Primary El ection at the Lazy Muntain precinct.

12:16: 33 PM
CHAI R STOLTZE cl osed public testinony.

SENATOR MCGQUI RE expressed her gratitude towards Chair Stoltze in
holding the hearing. She opined that the hearing was
informative, conversational, and aspersions were not cast. She
suggested that a letter be crafted to the governor to ask for a
delay in the election certification until greater scrutiny had
been afforded to the situation. She rermarked that additional
i nformation should be provided by the Division of Elections on
future plans for electronic systens in rural parts of the state.
She opined that the integrity of the state's electoral system
should be addressed by upgrading the voting systems in rural
communities. She asserted that what was good for Anchorage and
the Mat-Su shoul d be good for Chefornak and New ok.

12:19: 04 PM
REPRESENTATI VE VAZQUEZ poi nted out that elections in other parts
of the world were rigged. She said in light of the

irregularities, maintaining the integrity of the state's voting
system was inportant. She encouraged the director for the
Division of Elections to consider reaching out to the Departnent
of Justice regarding elections nonitoring in order to ensure
el ectoral integrity.

REPRESENTI VE LYNN opi ned that Al askans live in a wonderful place
where elections can occur, even when there are difficulties in
conducting the election. He remarked that he was shocked to hear
what had occurred in District 40 and other districts during the
2016 Prinmary Election. He stated that what appeared to have
happened was grossly unfair to the candidates and should never
have happened. He set forth that the whole electoral system
needed to be tied up and he hoped that the apparent inpropriety
does not occur again.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -31- August 29, 2016



12:21:13 PM

SENATOR HUGGE NS pointed out that Legislative Affairs has an
opinion on contested elections. He detailed that contested
el ections nust be brought before the superior court within 10
days. He shared 7 itenms that are potential solutions by the
superior court as foll ows:

1. Validate results of the election despite the findings of
mal conduct when irregularities are curable.

2. Invalidate specified ballots for error and uphold the
certification.

3. Invalidate election results, overturn the certificate of
el ection, and order a new el ection be conducted.

4. Calculate the proportion of the affected ballots, assign
the sanme proportion to each candidate's results depending
on the results either uphold the certification or
invalidate it.

5. Remand the case back to the director of elections, order a
recount in a manner consistent with its opinion, and order
either certification of results or a new el ecti on dependi ng
on results.

6. Order the |ieutenant governor to take neasures in order to
ensure the integrity of the next election.

7. Validate parts of the ballot that are not effected by error
and validate the election results.

He summarized that the |ist was not exhaustive, but the seven
itens were held in the legal opinion as potential renedies in
the cases of superior court in contested el ections.

12: 23: 07 PM

CHAI R STOLTZE noted that conmttee and non-conm ttee nenbers had
a conbined experience of 50 primary and general elections. He
admtted that elections were challenging, but opined that
el ections cane down to core principals of conduct and that was
what the conmittee was trying to focus on at the hearing for the
public. He admitted that he had never been in a close election
but expressed enpathy for candidates that were in close
elections. He asserted that when there were election conduct
i ssues, whether intentional or just a lack of training, the net
result was the sane.

He set forth that the conmttee hearing allowed the public to be
i nvol ved, presented an open and candid discussion wth the
director of elections, and acted as a conduit for the press that
probably answered sone questions. He reiterated that the outcone

SENATE STA COW TTEE -32- August 29, 2016



of the election was not the purview or concern of the commttee.
He asserted that the commttee was focused on the conduct of the
election and noted that the legal division had laid out sone
potential renmedies. He stated that whether or not the review
process was effected by the conmttee hearing or not, the review
probably should be a little nore introspective. He opined that
maybe District 40 should be the last district that should be
certified as the Division of Elections continues to | ook at sone
of the issues. He said he hoped that the D vision of Elections
woul d take note of the issues raised by the public, Legislative
Legal , and other others had raised during the hearing.

CHAIR STOLTZE set forth that the conmttee had net its
constitutional requirenent as a legislative branch of the
government and its uniform rules of jurisdiction for both the
House and Senate having jurisdiction on election issues. He
t hanked Director Bahnke for making herself available for the
hearing and asserted that her involvenent was good for the
public process. He opined that the public and the process both
benefitted fromthe commttee hearing.

12:26: 21 PM

There being no further business to conme before the conmmittee
Chair Stoltze adjourned the Senate State Affairs Conmmttee at
12: 26 p. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 33- August 29, 2016



